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GPS (RT 90 2.5 gon V) Skeen: 1369650 E, 6294480 N. Outdoor bath: 1369485 E, 6294820 N. Ivar's Church: 1368410
E, 6293500 N. Nygard: 1370250 E, 6294155 N. Iron Age cemetery: 1369790 E, 6294935 N

Resting place for canoeists
Skeen is located along the canoe route
through Lake Bolmen. There is a desig-
nated area at Skeen arranged for a stop
over with a simple structure that offers
shelter as well as a toilet facility. The
location of the site makes it attractive
also for people travelling by road. There
is also a place for outdoor bathing in the
reservoir north of the hydropower plant.
There was a settlement during the
Stone Age on the small isle Getterso

Tvars Church.

in the Kafjorden. Many items made of

flint have been found there. Boaters may make a
trip there and try and imagine how the Stone-Age
people made their living.

The Iron Age cemetery

There is a cemetery from the Iron Age in a wooded
grazing ground some 400 metres north of the
bridge in Skeen. The old cemetery can be accessed
from the road just north of Skeen, but it is neces-
sary to pass a grazing ground so be careful with
fences and be aware that they may be animals in

the area.

Interesting buildings

The Atorpet and the Nygérd buildings are the only
remaining of the old large buildings. The Atorpet
is easily located as it is squeezed between the hy-
dropower plant and the transformer. The Nygard
Farm is located further east at the other end of the

village some distance from the road. Please respect

those who live in or use the buildings.
The Isle Building can be viewed at

its new location in Vivljunga, some 30

kilometres south-west of Skeen, where it

was rebuilt.

Fishing

For fishing contact “Bolmens Fiskevard-
somrade” for the area upstream of

the hydropower plant and “Késens
Fiskevardsomrade” for the downstream
area. Fishing is prohibited for areas
near the hydropower plant. Fishing
permits for both areas are sold locally.

Ivar's Church

A large boulder south of Skeen is locally known

as Ivar’s Church. The big rock got its name after a
priest Ivar who worked in the Annerstad Parish in
the 16th century. He was “holy” to the extent that he
could walk on water. But once he committed a sin.
He asked the Lord for forgiveness and prayed that
the Lord would ensure that the big boulder cracked
as a sign that his sin was forgiven. Ivar’s Church is
reached by branching off from the main national
highway number 25 just west of Skeen. There is a
road sign “Ivars kyrka”. The boulder is 2.4 kilometres

from Skeen.

How to get there?

Branch off northwards from the national road
number 25 some 53 kilometres from Halmstad and
20 kilometres from Ljungby. Follow road signs.
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Illustration on cover: Rosebay willowherb and view of the Bolman River. Photo: Bo Tengnéds. Main sources
of information: "Nagot om posten i trakten kring Annerstad” by Erik Lindgren, published in “Annerstad forr
och nu”. Annerstads Hembygdsforening, 1979; “Skeen - till minnet av en by”, "Det gamla Skeen - for alltid
borta” (incl. sketch map), "Vattenverken i gamla Skeen” and "Pappersbruket i Skeen” all by Elsa Berglind and
“Sjoarna Bolmen och Dravens sankningsforetag” by Leif Norrman, published in “Annerstad — har hava véra
fader bott”. Annerstads Hembygdsférening, 1987; "Alfiske och annat fiske” by Elsa Berglind, "Om kavaljerer i
munkars vatten” by Lennart Williams and "Flottning p& Bolmen och Bolman” by Leif Norrman, published in
"Annerstad — ur arkiv och minnen”. Annerstad Hembygdsf6rening, 1994; Evert and Karl-Inge Olofsson, Skeen.
Research: Malin Ekwall. Text: Karin Tengnds. Photo: Bo and Karin Tengnds. Logotype: Lars Lidman. Design:
Tecknaregarden/Willy Lindstrom. Production: Naturbruk AB/Bo Tengnds. Project coordination: Bitte Rosén
Nilsson, Hylte kommun. Copyright: Naturbruk AB. Year: 2006.

The brochures “In the Wake of Ebbe Skammelson” are available on www.unnaryd.com and www.hylte.se

“Many present-day people would need the vest and relaxation that this seemingly simple place
offers with the sound of flowing water as the only music; a velief to search when the hectic
rhythm of life at home and at work and the intrusive unvrealities of business life makes man
exhausted to the very extreme edge.”

Elsa Berglind. 1987. "Det gamla Skeen—for alltid borta”. Published in "Annerstad, héir hava
vdra fader bott”. Annerstad’s Society for Cultural Heritage.
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For thousands of years
the people of Skeen have ' 4
been enjoying the sound

of flowing waler, the glittering
rapids and the lush surroundings
of the Bolmdn River. The location
at the river made many people have
reasons to pass by. The Skeen village

was drastically affected in 1954 when the

present hydropower station was constructed. A

major part of the village with its centuries-old
houses had to be demolished and remains of
many of the buildings were submerged in the
hydropower reservoir. Therefore, there is not
much left of the old cultural environment.

Important fishing

The eel fishery at Skeen is documented
since the 12th century. By then it was
owned by the monks of the Nydala Mon-
astery. It was one of the most important
sites for eel fishing in southern Sweden.
Annual catches of about 3 tons were
recorded and some eels measured 1.8
metres and weighed close to 4 kilos. Dur-
ing the period from 1920 to 1950, trout
fishing attracted sport fishing enthusi-
asts. The rapids upstream of the current
hydropower station used to be excellent
spawning grounds for trout. Trout of
10-12 kilos could occasionally be caught.
Some time around 1900, a big Wels catfish
ended up in the eel traps at Skeen. This

catch is one of very few known catches of

The resting place for canoeists.
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A document about the
eel fishery from the 12th
century.

this kind of fish in the
. = drainage system of the

Lagan River.
Fisheries became one of the major sub-
jects of conflicts when the water level of
Lake Bolmen was lowered around 1850.
The exploitation for hydropower caused
further damage to fisheries.

The mills

The oldest records of mills at Skeen
date back to 1381. The Skeen mills
could operate longer than most

other mills in case of drought or severe

cold. There was ample water most of the
time as the lake constituted a big reservoir.

As early as in the beginning of the 17th

The public route for flotation of timber at one of the
mills at Skeen. Photo: P G Veide 1935.

century it is known that the miller charged
levies for his service by taking a share of
the meal. Towards the end of the 18th
century larger but fewer mills were operat-
ing than earlier. That tendency continued
until the end of the milling era. The last
water-driven mill was demolished in 1951.

Paper factories
A paper mill, established 1681, became
the first factory in this region. Using
hydropower as a source of energy and rags
as raw material, the business continued
for 170 years. A local clergyman, Johannes
Wallinus, was the original founder. Initially
it was a small mill, but the production
reached a peak when two industrious col-
leagues and brothers in law, Lars Lemchen
and Magnus Norlander, took a lead.

Both the paper mill and the main resi-
dential building of Skeen’s North Farm
were located on a small island known

as the Monk’s Isle. Both buildings were

An wdeal location at the Bolman River
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Skeen in the past

Bridge

Market place

Nursery

The tannery bark-pounding mill

The tannery

Location of mills, dye house, saw mill, etc.
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ravaged by fire in 1805. Intense activity
followed and soon after a new paper mill
was in operation. Due to the fire hazard
the residential building was not rebuilt but
efforts were made to extend and renovate
a building that had been a side building
that had escaped the fire. This building
became known as the ‘Isle Building’. The
new paper mill was again ravaged by fire
in 1819. It was again rebuilt but then on
another small island. The manufacture
of paper ceased in 1851. Rags no longer
sufficed as raw material. Cellulose from
wood had emerged as new raw material
for paper.

A centre for traffic between
Halmstad and Véxjo
There used to be inns at Skeen. For a long
time, inns were charged with the responsi-
bility to avail the necessary provisions for
travellers.

A post office was established at Skeen
in 1868. The office was housed in one
of the inns located at the Liagard Farm.
This was the obvious place as stagecoaches
stopped here to change the horses. In
the early 1880s the inn as well as the post
office moved to the Nygard Farm at the
other end of the village. In summertime in
the 1880s, the post diligence was replaced
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G.  Location of the first paper mill
H.  Location of the second paper mill
] Location of the third paper mill
K. Location of the dairy

L.  Brewery

M. Warehouse

by the services of the steam ship “Ebbe”
which operated a service for cargo, post as
well as passengers.

The local market days
The introduction of market days was a

topic for discussion at a parochial vestry

The steamboat “Ebbe”. The man in the rear is the cap-
tain, Abraham Andersson. The picture is a redroduc-
tion of a painting by the postman Carl Henric Juhlin.

in 1856. The Governor was approached
and gave his consent. The last Wednes-
day every month became the market day.
The market attracted lots of people. The
nearby inn had the necessary permit to
serve and sell spirits. The excessive drink-
ing caused misbehaviour and fighting.
The conditions generated a heated debate
at the parochial vestry meetings. The
church leaders argued that the market

was ‘unnecessary and unhealthy’. It ought

to be abolished and prohibited. But the
market days continued with a lively com-
merce of grain, butter, honey, baskets and
many other things. When the inn moved
in the 1890s from the so called Stathuset
by the market to another location all the
problems with drinking ceased. But as the
drinking ceased, so did the popularity of
the market days. At last, Axel in Kvallsjo
selling clogs was the only businessman

remaining.

Timber transport in the river

For a long time timber has been floated
on Lake Bolmen and in the Bolman River.
It appears that some timber floating took
place already before the first steamship
entered the scene in 1878. The route was
approved as a public route for flotation

in 1894. This public decree marked the
beginning of an era that was to last for

over 50 years.

The building Stathuset, once a place to quench thirst
during market days.

The lowering of the water level

In 1816, it was suggested that the outlet at
Skeen should be deepened by digging and
blasting. The objective was to secure more
land for agriculture. In a letter to the
King in 1821 it was noted that the farmers
around the lake had a long-held desire to
lower the water level. So far, however, it
had been impossible as it was a project of
a magnitude that could not be afforded
locally. So they turned to the “King, Father
of our Land”. The inconveniences of the
high water level were emphasised. The
advantages with a lowering were pre-

sented. Calculations were made, and it was

The outdoor bath.

The Stone Age is a collective word for the
longest part of prehistory. In the Nordic
countries, the Stone Age is approximately
10000-1800 B.C.

The Iron Age. In the Nordic countries the
Iron Age commenced about 500 B.C. and
lasted to about 1050 A.D. The Viking Era
coincides with the latter part of the Iron
Age, 800-1050 A.D.

The monastery Nydala, founded in 1144
was one of Sweden'’s oldest and most pow-
erful monasteries. The monastery lost most
of its property through King Gustav Vasa’s
nationalisation of church property, the
so-called “Reduction”. Nydala was located
between Vdrnamo and Savsjo.

concluded that a lowering of 1.2 metres
would not adversely affect the waterworks
at Skeen. However, the uppermost dam,
the so called King’s Dam, where most of
the eel fishing was taking place, would
need to be removed.

The King approved the plan 26 years
later, in 1847. Long negotiations about the
eel fishing and the paper mill’s require-
ments followed. An 800 metres long canal
was dug. The undertaking resulted in
major compensation claims, especially for
the eel fishing. It took 100 years for these
issues to be resolved.

Drinking water supply

Many people in the Province of Scania
enjoy the water of Lake Bolmen daily.
An 80 kilometres long tunnel has been
constructed in the bedrock from an
intake near Skeen to Scania. The tunnel
has a diameter of approximately three
metres. Some 6,000 litres per second are
led through the tunnel. The tunnel was
completed in 1985.




